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申請編號: A/YL-TT/666 

申請位置現在只有雜草和廢物, 另有一個很久沒有使用的構築物, 當申請許可
後, 將會活化該地段內構築物及露天位置, 構築物用作公室, 另外露天位置興建
兩個臨時竉物收容所, 該收容所會採用隔音及隔熱的優質厚身鋁板作為牆身及
頂部以組合型式建造, 並每個收容所安裝 4-5部 5匹 24小時恆溫式天花空調及
抽濕過濾系統, 能使貓狗得到舒適環境外, 更可將噪音減至最低, 不會影響附近
居民及環境, 並會在周邊種植 20棵以上樹木進行綠化, 目的可以美化環境及環
保作用, 令附近居民及動物可有更舒適的環境下生活. 收容所不會有任何廣播系
統(如喇叭、擴音機, 哨子等) 用品, 對居民及動物不會造成噪音滋擾, 申請位置
將用石矢物料填土約 0.15米, 目的不容易積水及滋生蚊虫及細箘, 令居民及動
物可以在更舒適及衛生環境下生活, 本申請只會收容貓及狗, 營業時間為每天
09:00AM-18:00PM, 每天大約 6位義工及 3位員工工作, 收容所最多飼養不超過
15隻狗及 20隻貓, 貓隻只會在室內飼養, 狗隻每天只會上午 10:00-11:00及下
午 4:00-5:00在戶外散步, 其他時間只會在室內活動, 在戶外活動時均帶上口罩, 
對附近居民不會做成任可滋擾, 申請地點一般並沒有大型裝卸活動, 如狗糧及日
用品都是少量,一般都會在白沙村牌坊下車, 由小徑路進入, 因此路段出入人仕
不多, 不會影響附近人士, 申請地點沒有車路, 因此申請地點並沒有停收車輛位
置, 此外申請位置會建設沙井及其設計, 目的把範圍內的地面水, 以明渠引至附
近溪流, 排出前會把沉澱物過濾, 並會定期清理及檢查渠道和沙井, 確保渠道暢
通整潔, 雨水渠只會收集雨水, 不會連接化糞池和滲水井。有關動物寄所所產生
的廢水, 由於申請地點內及附近沒有大型公眾廢水處理關係, 現計劃將所有動物
寄養所所產生的廢物接駁到化糞池及滲水井, 在申請地點建造一個符合環保署
所定下的 ProPECC PN 1/23指引及參考村屋污水排放指南的化糞池來收集寄養所
的廢水。在興建化糞池並會安排認可合格人士參與及設計工程, 並會定時安排
泵車清理化糞池及滲水井的工程, 興建化糞池及滲水井距離會遠離河道 15米以
上, 離任何構築物超遇 3米, 由於申請地點附近河道及渠道並不是飲用用途, 此
距離並符合環保署所定下的 ProPECC 1/23指引。除了以上措施外, 申請地點不
會使用任何有化學成份的清潔用品, 只會用清水及高壓水槍清潔室內及露天位
置, 不會影響附近環境生態, 確保不會污染附近水源、河道及渠道, 並不會興建
及提供移動式洗手間及廁所。 

 
希望此附加文件可令貴處釋除隱憂, 並批准本申請。 

 
申請人: 區達榮 

21/8/2024 
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From: 
Sent: Monday, January 6, 2025 4:32 PM 
To: tpbpd/PLAND <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk> 
Cc: 

Subject: A/YL-TT/666（資料補充） 
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Government Departments’ General Comments

1. Land Administration

Comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department:

� No adverse comment on the application.

� Advisory comments as detailed in Appendix III.

2. Traffic

(a) Comment of the Commissioner for Transport:

� No adverse comment on the application.

(b) Comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways
Department:

� No adverse comment on the application.

� Advisory comments as detailed in Appendix III.

3. Agricultural, Nature Conservation and Animal Management

Comments of the Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation:

� The Site falls within the “Agriculture” zone and is generally abandoned. Agricultural
infrastructures such as road access and water source are available in the area. The Site
can be rehabilitated for agricultural activities such as open-field cultivation,
greenhouses, plant nurseries, etc., though whether there will be agricultural activities
on a specific site will hinge on a lot of factors.

� He has no strong view against the application from agricultural perspective.

� No comment on the application from the perspective of nature conservation;

� Advisory comments as detailed in Appendix III.

4. Environment

Comments of the Director of Environmental Protection:

� No objection to the application.

� No substantiated environmental complaint concerning the Site has been received in the
past three years.

� Advisory comments as detailed in Appendix III.
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5. Drainage

Comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North of Drainage Services Department:

� No objection to the application from the public drainage point of view.

� Should the application be approved, conditions should be included to request the
applicant to submit a drainage proposal and to implement and maintain the drainage
proposal for the proposed use to the satisfaction of the Director of Drainage Services or
of the Town Planning Board.

6. Fire Safety

Comments of the Director of Fire Services:

� No in-principle objection to the proposal subject to the fire service installations being
provided to the Site.

� Advisory comments as detailed in Appendix III.

7. Food and Environmental Hygiene

Comments of the Director of Food and Environmental Hygiene:

� No adverse comment on the application.

� Advisory comments as detailed in Appendix III.

8. Urban Design and Landscape

Comment of the Chief Town Planner/Urban Design and Landscape, Planning Department:

� No comment on the application as the applicant proposed to plant 21 new trees of native
species (Sapium sebiferum) within the Site to mitigate the landscape impact arising from
the proposed use.

9. Building Matters

Comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings Department
(CBS/NTW, BD):

� No objection to the application.

� As there is no record of approval by the Building Authority for the existing structure at
the Site, BD is not in a position to offer comments on the suitability for the proposed
use in the application.

� Advisory comments as detailed in Appendix III.
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10. Electricity Supply

Comments of the Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services:

� No adverse comment on the application.

� Advisory comments as detailed in Appendix III.

11. Other Departments

The following departments have no objection to/no comment on the application:

� Chief Engineer/Construction, Water Supplies Department;

� Project Manager (West), Civil Engineering and Development Department; and

� Commissioner of Police.
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Recommended Advisory Clauses

(a) failure to reinstate the application site as required under the relevant approval condition
upon expiry of the planning permission might constitute an unauthorized development
under the Town Planning Ordinance and be subject to enforcement and prosecution
actions;

(b) to note the comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department
(DLO/YL, LandsD) that:

(i) the application site (the Site) comprises Old Schedule Agricultural Lot 578 in
D.D. 117 held under the Block Government Lease which contains the restriction
that no structures are allowed to be erected without the prior approval of the
Government; and

(ii) the lot owner(s) shall apply to LandsD for a Short Term Waiver (STW) to permit
the structure(s) erected within the Site. The application for STW will be
considered by the Government in its capacity as a landlord and there is no
guarantee that the application will be approved. The STW, if approved, will be
subject to such terms and conditions including the payment of waiver fee and
administrative fee as considered appropriate by LandsD. Besides, given that the
proposed use is temporary in nature, only erection of temporary structure(s) will
be considered;

(c) to note the comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways
Department (CHE/NTW, HyD) that:

(i) adequate drainage measures shall be provided to prevent surface water running
from the Site to the nearby public roads and drains; and

(ii) the access road connecting to the Site with the nearby public road is not and will
not be maintained by HyD. HyD should not be responsible for maintaining
any access connecting the Site with the public road;

(d) to note the comments of the Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation that:

(i) from animal management perspective, the Site does not associate with any
licence granted or any application received by his department;

(ii) under the Public Health (Animals) (Boarding Establishment) Regulations, Cap.
139I (the Regulations), any person who provides food and accommodation for
animals in return for a fee paid by the animal owner must apply for a Boarding
Establishment Licence from his department. The applicant should also be
reminded that the establishment and ancillary facilities licensed under the
Regulations must always fulfil the criteria listed in the Regulations;

(iii) the dogs kept by the applicant should also be properly licensed in accordance
with the Rabies Ordinance (Cap. 421) and the applicant should observe the
Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Ordinance (Cap. 169) at all times; and

(iv) detailed information and guidance on Animal Boarding Establishment would be
provided upon receipt of the licence application;
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(e) to note the comments of the Director of Environmental Protection that:

(i) all dogs shall be kept inside the enclosed structure on the Site, as proposed by
the applicant, during the planning approval period;

(ii) no public announcement system, whistle blowing, portable loudspeaker or any
form of audio amplification system is allowed to be used on the Site, as proposed
by the applicant, during the planning approval period;

(iii) to provide adequate supporting infrastructure/facilities for proper collection,
treatment and disposal of waste/wastewater generated from the proposed use. If
septic tank and soakaway system will be used in case of unavailability of public
sewer, its design and construction shall follow the requirements of
Environmental Protection Department’s Practice Note for Professional Person
(ProPECC) PN 1/23 “Drainage Plans subject to Comment by the Environmental
Protection Department” including completion of percolation test and
certification by Authorized Person;

(iv) to follow the relevant mitigation measures and requirements in the latest “Code
of Practice on Handling the Environmental Aspects of Temporary uses and Open
Storage Sites” issued by Environmental Protection Department to minimise the
potential environmental nuisances on the surrounding areas; and

(v) the applicant is obliged to meet the statutory requirements under relevant
pollution control ordinances;

(f) to note the comments of the Director of Food and Environmental Hygiene (DFEH) that:

(i) no Food and Environmental Hygiene Department (FEHD)’s facilities will be
affected by the proposed use;

(ii) proper license/permit issued by FEHD is required if there is any food business
/catering service/activities regulated by DFEH under the Public Health and
Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap. 132) and other relevant legislation for the
public and the operation of any business should not cause any obstruction; and

(iii) if the proposal involves any commercial/trading activities, there should be no
encroachment on the public place and no environmental nuisance should be
generated to the surroundings. Its state should not be a nuisance or injurious or
dangerous to health and surrounding environment. Any animal carcass/parts
shall be properly wrapped or bagged before disposal and in accordance with the
relevant legislation. Also, for any waste generated from the activities in the
premises, the applicant should handle on his/her own expenses;

(g) to note the comments of the Director of Fire Services that:

(i) the layout plans for the proposed fire service installations (FSI) should be drawn
to scale and depicted with dimensions and nature of occupancy;

(ii) the location of the proposed FSI to be installed should be clearly marked on the
layout plans; and

(iii) if the proposed structure is required to comply with the Buildings Ordinance
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(BO) (Cap 123), detailed fire services requirements will be formulated upon
receipt of formal submission of general building plans;

(h) to note the comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings
Department (CBS/NTW, BD) that:

(i) the Site shall be provided with means of obtaining access thereto from a street
and emergency vehicular access in accordance with Regulations 5 and 41D of
the Building (Planning) Regulations (B(P)R) respectively;

(ii) the Site does not abut on a specified street of not less than 4.5m wide and its
permitted development intensity shall be determined under Regulation 19(3) of
the B(P)R at building plan submission stage;

(iii) if the existing structures are erected on leased land without the approval of the
Building Authority, they are unauthorized building works (UBW) under the BO
and should not be designated for any proposed use under the application;

(iv) for UBW erected on leased land, enforcement action may be taken by BD to
effect their removal in accordance with the prevailing enforcement policy
against UBW as and when necessary. The granting of any planning approval
should not be construed as an acceptance of any existing building works or UBW
on the Site under the BO;

(v) if the proposed use is subject to issue of a license, any existing structures on the
Site intended to be used for such purposes are required to comply with the
building safety and other relevant requirements as may be imposed by the
licensing authority;

(vi) three structures are proposed in the application.  Before any new building
works (including containers / open sheds as temporary buildings, demolition and
land filling, etc.) are to be carried out on the Site, prior approval and consent of
BA should be obtained, otherwise they are unauthorized building works under
the BO. An Authorized Person should be appointed as the coordinator for the
proposed building works in accordance with the BO;

(vii) any temporary shelters or converted containers for office, storage, washroom or
other uses are considered as temporary buildings which are subject to the control
of Part VII of the B(P)R; and

(viii) detailed checking under the BO will be carried out at building plan submission
stage; and

(i) to note the comments of the Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services (DEMS)
that:

in the interests of public safety and ensuring the continuity of electricity supply, the
parties concerned with planning, designing, organizing and supervising any activity
near the underground cable or overhead line under the mentioned document should
approach the electricity supplier (i.e. CLP Power) for the requisition of cable plans (and
overhead line alignment drawings, where applicable) to find out whether there is any
underground cable and/or overhead line within and/or in the vicinity of the concerned
site. They should also be reminded to observe the Electricity Supply Lines (Protection)
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Regulation and the “Code of Practice on Working near Electricity Supply Lines”
established under the Regulation when carrying out works in the vicinity of the
electricity supply lines.
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